





Holly Hill Road East
Community Development District

Minutes



MINUTES OF MEETING

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING

Wednesday March 21, 2018 at 11:16 a.m.

Offices of Cassidy Homes

346 East Central Ave.,

Winter Haven, Florida 33880

Board Members present at roll call:

Rennie Heath Board Member
Andrew Rhinehart Board Member
John Mazuchowski Board Member
Lauren Schwenk Board Member
Scott Shapiro Board Member (via phone)

Also, Present:

Roy Van Wyk Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.

Jane Gaarlandt Fishkind & Associates, Inc.

Kevin Plenzler Fishkind & Associates, Inc.  (via phone)

Dennis Wood District Engineer (via phone)
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 11:16 a.m. Those in attendance are outlined above.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period

There were no members of the public present.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Minutes of
the February 21, 2018 Board of

Supervisors Meeting

The Board reviewed the minutes of the February 21, 2018 Board of Supervisors Meeting.



On MOTION by Mr. Rhinehart, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in favor, the Board
approved the Minutes of the February 21, 2018 Board of Supervisors Meeting.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Notice of
Boundary Amendment

Mr. Heath asked if the boundary amendment was referring to the 15 acres that was
moved into the District. Mr. Van Wyk said that is correct and the District needs to amend
the notice to include those 15 acres.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board
approved Notice of Boundary Amendment.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation of Amended &
Restated Engineer’s Report

Mr. Van Wyk explained that this report is modified to include the additional 15 acres of
land acquired by the District. Mr. Wood said that the only other change he made was to
create a third phase. He noted that he made a phase for the Amenity area, the lots, and the
projects north of North Boulevard. Mr. Van Wyk asked if the total project cost remained
the same. Mr. Wood responded that the price was adjusted for the extra lots that were
added. The total project cost is $12,962,950.00. Mr. Van Wyk asked Mr. Wood if it is his
opinion that the costs are reasonable for the improvements that are to be made. Mr. Wood
responded yes. Mr. Van Wyk asked Mr. Wood if there is any reason that the District
could not complete the project as set forth in the Engineer’s report to which Mr. Wood
responded no. Mr. Van Wyk called for any questions. Hearing none, he requested a
motion to approve the Amended & Restated Engineer’s Report

On MOTION by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the Board
approved the Amended & Restated Engineer’s Report.




SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation of Amended &
Restated Assessment Methodology

Ms. Gaarlandt asked Mr. Plenzler if there were any changes to the Assessment
Methodology. Mr. Plenzler stated that he incorporated the changes associated with the
Engineer’s Report with respect to creating a Phase 1, Phase 2, and Phase 3. He also
included the additional lots associated with the Boundary Amendment. He incorporated
the change in the capital costs for the $12,962,950.00 as well as adjusted the estimated
costs of financing for the total bonds of $17,575.00 for Phases 1, 2, and 3. He
incorporated those as part of the Amended & Restated analysis. Mr. Van Wyk asked if it
is still his opinion that the benefit provided by the improvement costs are still equal to or
greater than the burden placed on the land. Mr. Plenzler responded yes, they are. Mr. Van
Wyk asked if it is still his opinion that the assessments are fairly and reasonably
apportioned across the parcels that are located within the District and Mr. Plenzler
responded yes, they are. Mr. Van Wyk requested a motion to approve the Amended &
Restated Assessment Methodology.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board
approved the Amended & Restated Assessment Methodology.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2018-
06, Declaring Special Assessments
on the Expansion Area

Mr. Van Wyk explained that this resolution takes the total cost of the improvements, the
estimated costs of financing those improvements as set forth in the Methodology Report,
and makes findings with respect to the cost of the projects that are associated with the
new lands that have recently been acquired, starts the assessment process for those lands,
and makes those findings as discussed by the District Engineer and Assessment
Methodology Consultant regarding the benefit and the apportionment of the
improvements. Mr. Van Wyk requested a motion to approve Resolution 2018-06.

On MOTION by Mr. Rhinehart, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in favor, the Board
approved Resolution 2018-06, Declaring Special Assessments on the Expansion Area




EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2018-
07, Setting a Public Hearing on the
Imposition of Special Assessments
on the Expansion Area

Ms. Gaarlandt noted that the next scheduled meeting is April 18, 2018 and will not give
the District enough time to notice the public hearing and suggested the public hearing for
the May 16" meeting date.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the Board
Approved Resolution 2018-07, Setting May 16, 2018 at 10:45 a.m. at the current location
as the Public Hearing Date on the Imposition of Special Assessments on the Expansion
Area.

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2018-
08, Setting a Public Hearing on the
District’s Intent to Use the
Uniform Method of Collection for
the Expansion Area

Ms. Gaarlandt suggested setting May 16, 2018 as the public hearing on the District’s
intent to use the Uniform Method of Collection for Expansion Area.

On MOTION by Mr. Rhinehart, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board
Approved Resolution 2018-08, Setting May 16, 2018 at 10:45 a.m. at the current location
as the Public Hearing Date on the District’s Intent to Use the Uniform Method of
Collection for the Expansion Area.

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Payment
Authorization Nos. 20-22

The Board reviewed Payment Authorization Nos. 20 - 22.




On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board
ratified Payment Authorization Nos. 20 - 22.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Monthly Financials

The Board reviewed the month financials. There was no Board action required at this
time.

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports
District Counsel — No Report
District Engineer — No Report

District Manager — No Report

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience
Comments

There were no Supervisor requests or Audience comments.

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

There were no other questions or comments. Ms. Gaarlandt adjourned the meeting.

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Rhinehart, with all in favor, the Board
adjourned the March 21, 2018 Board of Supervisors Meeting.

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairman / Vice Chairman







Holly Hill Road East
Community Development District

Real Estate Appraisal Report for Holly Hill Road East
Amenities Land












TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS....cctucriiiitinnimmaiicnntnmsiesmssissmsmsanssnerssosssiss s 4
SUBJECT PROPERTY SALES/LISTING HISTORY ...viisuviiurseeiriassreesieessssassssbeseessscessseassesesnssnesnnsssassssssniasassssessossnsosessasssssssnsasnsn 5
D EFINITION St et erreuentsrrrnsnsacsssseasnsrsesransussssssesnsssnsnssssennnsessessnssssnansssesssssssasssssssssssesssnsosssnnsusstssssieesssnnnnsseanesstiensasenanenaans 6
CERTIFICATION STATEIMENT ..utiitiiicirteciriraseireveereersssessansacennasrossssessstsssstsssensssssassessesersnaistesssetsnsseerussinsarescssasansas 10
LIMITING CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS ...crieeiiiiiiiiiimessiessenssimonsianimtiasimescasitiserscisnisiaiimassensnsssessassss 11
SCOPE OF WORK e..veiuiiieiieeeirivrencaersensssrnaneasernssetsessssesssssensssssssnsssesessessssssesssssttnesimaenseestaseessasiiiaaseiscesissssncssnses 13
IMIARKET AREA AN ALY SIS uiiiiitiiiirtuiiruaiesesnsasrrasoosrrnsertarosssnessasmmassstessceimsessteessscteintoeiitesuistesatarsmesseraiiissnees 15
LOCATION IVIAP . ettvtteeetiiiieessseeeessaesesssrensessessistssaeseesserss sessssnsnsansssssasesssstnsssssssssssssnsssisasassssensesseseesssinnmsissosssssssnesessansnns 26
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION ..uuiiueiettieuiciiuniesrennensseenncoresesmserssssssnsmsssesenteesnissmssscsrsnisassssnsmiassetssesssassssarsamiasessiottosses 27
GENERAL SITE INFORMATION ..eeiiiuuvteieeeeeessiiessrereeessssisssasassssssesssrssssssesssesasssssesseseensnsessenssssasersssessssissassnesersesssssresserssnessns 27
PLAT IMIAP = PARENT TRACT . teeettrriieeiiieiissreseessissasssssasssssesnaasssssssscsssnnnsssnnssneeessensssonsassssssssssassiassssaesssssesssonsissssanrnesssss 29
AERIAL IMIAP = PARENT TRACT 1uttitiiiiieuterirrrieeseeiiassrssessssssssssssseneressesasessasnesteaessssmnansssentsssssimmessissssseeessnssssssisbisastssenssassnn 30
SITE PLAN = AMENITIES PARCEL AREA....uuvvveieeeeieiiuirreeeseeiseessstasssseesreeatessetesserenesssmaanesnnsrtessesssimimessesssssssiomimsssssnasieseiiossses 31
FLOOD MAP — PARENT TRACT .vvtvveetsresersrseisssrereenmnssnersecsuensisseencssssenssensssseessessatetessssniistnnmiieiettsesissisitersimiosrronassaacaenns 32
SUBJECT PHOTOGRAPHS vvvvivvttuussssressnsssssueessssesnssssssssssssssssssssrseseessssssasssssssssssasssssesnssssssssssssisisssssssssssssssssonsstsssssssasansnsanes 33
ASSESSIVIENT AND TAXES o.vuvierutivrnseratecrueiessorsussesesssnssasssnsssanssnssesssessesstessstsssssssirsstnsstsssscassssssrassessssressosssnsssaness 36
ZONING/LAND USE ..ccvtiiiiiiiiniiisseiniiisssensiesisisiiiemiesiciisceiiss smesssiissisesiietetiiisiisimmemsettasasmmmecemasmssn 36
HIGHEST AND BEST USE ..vvuuuiretnuciniinnecernerssrmonseerensssssnssersnsessssssesasssonssssnssssseesinsessssssasssssssssseansseernssstansinesnssissansns 37
VALUATION METHODOLOGY ..eetuiirueiianieeseiinerenarernrseruessessanssanssessaniserssnssisssiasstnsstssscessesssesssstsaesasianistsssenssosissnenns 40
AANALYSES APPLIED t1vvureirersenseresensssessesessuunssierssressssnsersesssesssannsesssnnssstsstisnstessassssssessssnisessensssssssinesrrrestiatiessssaennisnssrsaianns 41
SALES COMPARISON APPROACH — LAND VALUATION ... ccuuiietietnectnmesitrinccsinamsinssseemietenissacsmsceenanioniorsonsinssnses 42
LAND COMPARABLES +xvttreresseeeeertetettttttssecteeeerseesserseesesseersessnesssesssesssassunsssssssssssssssssrssssnstseseetenmeesennessmmmssiiniimieeeniersrn. 42
ANALYSES GRID . eeeeerisieesssiertetesssiesssseeeeeseersassssesnesasesasnsssssssssssssseesneennnessessessnsensnsssnsssssssoriesssssssssenneesensseinsiisssannnsisrsrsen 48
COMPARABLE LAND SALE ADJUSTIMENTS vt ettruuueetsrereensmnneseresrunnssesssnnessecssssecessssssssssessssssessssseetnesssesssassissitaaniniseeessasseronnns 49
SALES COMPARISON APPROACH CONCLUSION — LAND VALUATION 11tteeterserreeensersercnnnirsiesessisssssssssssnssesessssssssunsssssensnaasssnssises 50
ADDENDA .. cuiiiittiireeniirseiisaeserreserseeasessrsssrereesssssesssrssasssssemtsenstnemnmsaesessonsssesssttesseitesssnitaeaiieniiiiessiiiiraiaciinianssens 51

Engagement Letter

Deeds {Legal Descriptions — Parent Tract)

Legal Description — Subject Amenities Parcel (2.96 acres)
Subject PUD Information

Qualifications of Appraisers

Prepared for Holly Hili Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037



Summary of Important Facts and Conclusions

Subject Property:

HHR East Amenities Land
XXX Holly Hill Road, Davenport,
Polk County, FL, 33837

Owner of Record:

HHR East, LLC

Location Description:

The subject property is located along the east side of Holly
Hili Road approximately 650 feet south of North Boulevard
in Davenport.

Property Type:

Residential

Report Type:

Appraisal Report

Interest Appraised:

Fee Simple Interest

Report Date:

April 6, 2018

Value Date:

March 26, 2018 — As Is

Date of Viewing:

March 26, 2018

Highest & Best Use As Vacant:

Assemblage with adjacent land for the purpose of
residential development

Zoning Designation:

PUD, Holly Hill Road East PUD (City of Davenport)

Legal Description:

Please see addenda of this report

Tax ID/APN:

27-27-05-726000-020151, 27-27-05-726000-020153, 27-27-
05-726000-020140, 27-27-05-726000-020120

Land Size (Acres)

24,18 - Parent Tract
2.96 - Amenities Parcel

VALUE INDICATIONS

Land Value (Sales Comparison): $280,000
Reconciled Value(s): As s
Value Conclusion(s) $280,000

Effective Date(s)

March 26, 2018

Property Rights

Fee Simple

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD

Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, inc. 18020037



Subject Property Sales/Listing History

Current Owner: HHR East, LLC

Current Listing Price: None

Pending Sales Price: None

Proposed Buyer: None at this time

Prior Sale/Listing: The subject property parent tract last sold in three separate transactions for

assemblage purposes. Two sales occurred on May 1, 2017 which was parcel
27-27-05-726000-020120 for $859,200 and parcel 27-27-05-726000-020140
for $401,800. Parcels 27-27-05-726000-020151 and 27-27-05-726000-
020153 sold together on October 31, 2017 for $658,800. The transaction as a
whole was considered to be close to market at the time.

Grantor: Holly Hill Fruit Products Co., Inc.

Grantee: HHR East, LLC

Date of Transaction: October 31, 2017

Indicated Sales Price:  $1,919,800

The subject property is not currently listed for sale.
The subject is not under a pending contract for purchase.

There have been no sales or listings of the subject property in the past five years, other than those
stated above.

Unless otherwise stated, the appraisers have not reviewed an abstract of title relating to the subject
property. No title search has been made, and the reader should consult an attorney or title company for
information and data relative to the property ownership and legal description. It is assumed that the
subject title is marketable, but the title should be reviewed by legal counsel. Any information given by
the appraiser as to a sales history is information that the appraiser has researched; to the best of our
knowledge, this information is accurate, but not warranted.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, inc. 18020037



Definitions

Market Value

Department of the Treasury, Office of Comptroller of the Currency, Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Office of Thrift Supervision and National Credit
Union Administration under 12 CFR Part 34, Real Estate Appraisals and Title XI of the Financial
Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 (“FIRREA”); and the Interagency Appraisal
and Evaluation Guidelines, Federal Register, Volume 75, No. 237, December 10, 2010.

“Market Value,” as used in this report, is defined as:
... the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market
under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and
knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this
definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from seller
to buyer under conditions whereby:

Buyer and Seller are typically motivated;

Both parties are well informed or well advised, and acting in what they consider their own best
interests;

A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements
comparable thereto; and

The price represents the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by
special or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the
sale.

A Fee Simple estate is defined as:
Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or estate, subject only to the
limitations imposed by the governmental powers of taxation, eminent domain, police
power, and escheat.

A Leased Fee interest is defined as:

A freehold (ownership interest) where the possessory interest has been granted to another
party by the creation of a contractual landlord-tenant relationship (i.e., a lease).

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boutevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037



Marketing Time is defined as:

An opinion of the amount of time it might take to sell a real or personal property interest at
the concluded market value level during the period immediately after the effective date of
the appraisal.

Marketing time differs from exposure time, which is always presumed to precede the
effective date of the appraisal.

Advisory Opinion 7 of the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and
Statement on Appraisal Standards No. 6, "Reasonable Exposure Time in Real Property and
Personal Property Market Value Opinions" address the determination of reasonable
exposure and marketing time.

Exposure Time is defined as:
1. The time a property remains on the market.

2. The estimated length of time the property interest being appraised would have been offered on
the market prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value on the effective
date of the appraisal; a retrospective estimate based on an analysis of past events assuming a
competitive and open market.

See Marketing Time, above.

Gross Building Area (GBA): Total floor area of a building, excluding unenclosed areas, measured from
the exterior of the walls of the above-grade area. This includes mezzanines and basements if and when
typically included in the region.

Rentable Area (RA): For office buildings, the tenant’s pro rata portion of the entire office floor, excluding
elements of the building that penetrate through the floor to the areas below. The rentable area of a
floor is computed by measuring the inside finished surface of the dominant portion of the permanent
building walls, excluding any major permanent penetrations of the floor. Alternatively, the amount of
space on which the rent is based; calculated according to local practice.

Gross Leasahle Area (GLA): Total floor area designed for the occupancy and exclusive use of tenants,
including basements and mezzanines; measured from the center of joint partitioning to the outside wall
surfaces.

As Is Market Value
The estimate of the market value of the real property in its current physical condition, use and zoning as
of the appraisal date.

Stabilized Value
Stabilized value is the prospective value of a property after construction has been completed and
market occupancy and cash flow have been achieved.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037



As Completed Value

The prospective value of a property after all construction has been completed. This value reflects all
expenditures for lease-up and occupancy that may be expected to have occurred at that point in time,
which may or may not put the property at stabilized value.

Gross Lease (G or FS)
A lease in which the landlord receives stipulated rent and is obligated to pay all of the property’s
operating and fixed expenses; also called full-service lease.

Modified Gross Lease (MG)

A lease in which the landlord receives stipulated rent and is obligated to pay some, but not all, of the
property’s operating and fixed expenses. Since assignment of expenses varies among modified gross
leases, expense responsibility must always be specified. In some markets, a modified gross lease may be
called a double net lease, net net lease, partial net lease, or semi-gross lease.

Net Net Net Lease (NNN)

A lease in which the tenant assumes all expenses (fixed and variable) of operating a property except that
the landlord is responsible for structural maintenance, building reserves, and management. Also called a
NNN, triple net lease, or fully net lease.

Net Lease (Net)
A lease in which the landlord passes on all expenses to the tenant.

Absolute Net Lease (TN)
A lease in which the tenant pays all expenses including structural maintenance, building reserves, and
management; often a long-term lease to a credit tenant. Also called total net lease.

Common Area Maintenance (CAM)
1. The expense of operating and maintaining common areas; may or may not include management
charges and usually does not include capital expenditures on tenant improvements or other
improvements to the property.
« CAM can be a line-item expense for a group of items that can include maintenance of the parking
lot and landscaped areas and sometimes the exterior walls of the buildings.
¢ CAM can refer to all operating expenses.
« CAM can refer to the reimbursement by the tenant to the landlord for all expenses reimbursable
under the lease. Sometimes reimbursements have what is called an administrative load.
2. The amount of money charged to tenants for their shares of maintaining a center’s common area. The
charge that a tenant pays for shared services and facilities such as electricity, security, and maintenance
of parking lots. The area maintained in common by all tenants, such as parking lots and common
passages. The area is often defined in the lease and may or may not include all physical area to be paid
for by all tenants. Items charged to common area maintenance may include cleaning services, parking
lot sweeping and maintenance, snow removal, security, and upkeep. (ICSC)

Operating Expenses
The periodic expenditures necessary to maintain the real property and continue production of the
effective gross income, assuming prudent and competent management.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037



Market Rent

The most probable rent that a property should bring in a competitive and open market reflecting all
conditions and restrictions of the lease agreement, including permitted uses, use restrictions, expense
obligations, term, concessions, renewal and purchase options, and tenant improvements (Tls).

Highest and Best Use

Highest and best use is defined as: (1) the reasonable and probable use that supports the highest
present value of vacant land or improved property, as defined, as of the date of the appraisal; (2) the
reasonably probable and legal use of land or sites as though vacant, found to be physically possible,
appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that results in the highest present land value; and (3)
the most profitable use.

Implied in these definitions is that the determination of highest and best use takes into account the
contribution of a specific use to the community and community development goals as well as the
benefits of that use to individual property owners. Hence, in certain situations the highest and best use
of land may be for parks, greenbelts, preservation, conservation, wildlife habitats, and the like.

Extraordinary Assumption

An assumption, directly related to a specific assignment, as of the effective date of the assignment
results, which, if found to be false, could alter the appraiser's opinions or conclusions. Extraordinary
assumptions presume as fact otherwise uncertain information about physical, legal, or economic
characteristics of the subject property; or about conditions external to the property such as market
conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data used in an analysis. An extraordinary assumption may
be used in an assignment only if:

e Itis required to properly develop credible opinions and conclusions;

e The appraiser has a reasonable basis for the extraordinary assumption;

e Use of the extraordinary assumption results in a credible analysis; and

e The appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in USPAP for extraordinary
assumptions.

Hypothetical Condition

A condition, directly related to a specific assignment, which is contrary to what is known by the
appraiser to exist on the effective date of the assignment results, but is used for the purpose of
analysis. Hypothetical conditions assume conditions contrary to known facts about physical, legal, or
economic characteristics of the subject property; or about conditions external to the property, such as
market conditions or trends; or about the integrity of data used in an analysis. A hypothetical condition
may be used in an assignment only if:

e Use of the hypothetical condition is clearly required for legal purposes, for purposes of
reasonable analysis, or for purposes of comparison;

e Use of the hypothetical condition results in a credible analysis; and

e The appraiser complies with the disclosure requirements set forth in USPAP for hypothetical
conditions.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037






Limiting Conditions and Assumptions

Acceptance of and/or use of this report constitutes acceptance of the following limiting conditions and
assumptions; these can only be modified by written documents executed by both parties.

This appraisal is to be used only for the purpose stated herein. While distribution of this appraisal in its
entirety is at the discretion of the client, individual sections shall not be distributed; this report is
intended to be used in whole and not in part.

No part of this appraisal, its value estimates or the identity of the firm or the appraiser(s) may be
communicated to the public through advertising, public relations, media sales, or other media.

All files, work papers and documents developed in connection with this assignment are the property of
Name Information, estimates and opinions are verified where possible, but cannot be guaranteed. Plans
provided are intended to assist the client in visualizing the property; no other use of these plans is
intended or permitted.

No hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil or structure, which would make the
property more or less valuable, were discovered by the appraiser(s) or made known to the appraiser(s).
No responsibility is assumed for such conditions or engineering necessary to discover them. Unless
otherwise stated, this appraisal assumes there is no existence of hazardous materials or conditions, in
any form, on or near the subject property.

Unless stated herein, the property is assumed to be outside of areas where flood hazard insurance is
mandatory. Maps used by public and private agencies to determine these areas are limited with respect
to accuracy. Due diligence has been exercised in interpreting these maps, but no responsibility is
assumed for misinterpretation.

Good title, free of liens, encumbrances and special assessments is assumed. No responsibility is assumed
for matters of a legal nature.

Necessary licenses, permits, consents, legislative or administrative authority from any local, state or
Federal government or private entity are assumed to be in place or reasonably obtainable.

It is assumed there are no zoning violations, encroachments, easements or other restrictions which
would affect the subject property, unless otherwise stated.

The appraiser(s) are not required to give testimony in Court in connection with this appraisal. If the
appraisers are subpoenaed pursuant to a court order, the client agrees to pay the appraiser(s) our
regular per diem rate plus expenses.

Appraisals are based on the data available at the time the assignment is completed.
Amendments/modifications to appraisals based on new information made available after the appraisal
was completed will be made, as soon as reasonably possible, for an additional fee.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
11



Ameticans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990

A civil rights act passed by Congress guaranteeing individuals with disabilities equal opportunity in public
accommodations, employment, transportation, government services, and telecommunications.
Statutory deadlines become effective on various dates between 1990 and 1997. A.R.E.A. Real Estate
Appraisers, Inc. has not made a determination regarding the subject’s ADA compliance or non-
compliance. Non-compliance could have a negative impact on value, however this has not been
considered or analyzed in this appraisal.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, inc. 18020037
12



|
|
|
|
l

Scope of Work

According to the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, it is the appraiser’s responsibility

to develop and report a scope of work that results in credible results that are appropriate for the
appraisal problem and intended user(s). Therefore, the appraiser must identify and consider:

e the client and intended users;

® the intended use of the report;
e the type and definition of value;
e the effective date of value;

® assignment conditions;

e typical client expectations; and

e typical appraisal work by peers for similar assignments.

This appraisal is prepared for Ms. Jane Gaarlandt, Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD.

The problem to be solved is to estimate the current 'As Is' market value. The intended use is for

establishing a possible sale price. This appraisal is intended for the use of Holly Hill Road East CDD and

North Boulevard CDD.

ScoPE OF WORK

Report Type:

Property Identification:

Inspection:

Market Area and Analysis of
Market Conditions:

Highest and Best Use Analysis:

Type of Value:

This is an Appraisal Report as defined by Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice under Standards Rule 2-2(a).
This format provides a summary or description of the
appraisal process, subject and market data and valuation
analyses.

The subject has been identified by the legal description and
the assessors' parcel number.

The appraiser has viewed the site and photographs have been
taken.

A Level B analysis of market conditions has been made.

An as vacant and as improved highest and best use analysis
for the subject has been made. Physically possible, legally
permissible and financially feasible uses were considered, and

the maximally productive use was concluded.

Market Value

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD

Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc.

18020037

13



Valuation Analyses

Cost Approach: A cost approach was not applied as the subject consists of
vacant land and the cost approach is not applicable.

Sales Comparison Approach: A sales approach was applied as there is adequate data to
develop a value opinion and this approach reflects market
behavior for this property type.

Income Approach: An income approach was not applied as the subject consists of
vacant land and the cost approach is not applicable.

Extraordinary Assumptions: e There are no Extraordinary Assumptions for this
appraisal.
Hypothetical Conditions: e There are no hypothetical conditions for this appraisal.

Summary of Scope:

The subject consists of a 2.96 acre parcel being split out of a larger 24.18 acre parent tract for the
purpose of constructing an amenities area for a proposed residential development. The property is
located along the east side of Holly Hill Road approximately 650 feet south of North Boulevard in
Davenport. In the appraisal of vacant land, the Sales Comparison Approach is most commonly the only
approach applied. The Cost Approach is not applicable and generally income and expense information
for vacant land is not available. Therefore, the appraiser has relied solely on the Sales Comparison
Approach for the valuation of the subject land.

As will be discussed later in this report, the highest and best use of the subject 2.96 acre parcel is to be
assembled with the adjacent land for the purpose of residential development. Based on this reasoning,
the subject parent tract (24.18 acres) will be valued on a per acre basis in the analysis to follow, then the
reconciled price per acre will be applied to the 2.96 acre subject amenities parcel for a final as is value.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
14


















OVERVIEW OF RESIDENTIAL HOUSING MARKET

Since the subject property is a residential project, it is important to investigate the residential housing
market for current and historical trends. The Central Florida housing market has gone through drastic
changes in the market over the past few years. Prior to 2005, the County market had been growing at
relatively consistent rates since the mid 1990’s. Beginning in the first quarter of 2005, sales of homes
began a drastic increase with record quantities of homes sold. There was a small correction in January
of 2006, although the number of closings continued to increase through the fourth quarter of 2006. The
residential market peaked during the end of 2006 and beginning of 2007. From this point, the market
began a decline that would become one of the worst housing market declines in history.

However, over the past few years the residential market has improved significantly with new residential
construction on the rise with substantial activity in the north Haines City/Davenport area. According to a
recent article in the Lakeland Ledger, the number of permits issued for new homes rose by 45% from
July 2016 to July 2017. Mike Hickman of Hickman Homes was quoted in the article as saying that the
increase in home building activity is a result of a “perfect storm” of high demand, low interest rates and
relatively low home prices when compared to the Tampa and Orlando markets. Also discussed in the
article is Polk County’s prime location in the center of the Interstate 4 corridor which means that Polk
will see housing demand beyond local employment growth due to an increasing spillover effect from the
Orlando and Tampa MSA’s. One can live in Polk County and work in either Tampa or Orlando with a
reasonable commute. The north Haines City/Davenport market area is within close proximity to
Interstate 4 making it a desirable area to reside, particularly for those who work locally or in the
Kissimmee/Orlando areas.

The most recent article regarding the state of housing in Polk County published in the Lakeland Ledger
was from August of 2017 and reads as follows:

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
20






The rate of increase in single-family home permits issued in the U.S. last month.

Local permitting agencies issued 811,000 single-family permits in July compared with
718,000 permits in July 2016, according to the U.S. Census Burcau. Those numbers
reflect permit activity over an entire year based on the number of permits issued in

July.

“I'he overall strengthening of the single-family sector is consistent with solid builder
confidence in the market,” said Granger MacDonald, chairman ol the National
Association of Home Builders and a home builder from Kerrville, Texas, in a statement
on the association’s website. “The sector should continue to remain firm as the job

market and economy grow and more consumers enter the housing market.”

Also doing well nationally are small, multi-unit residential buildings with two to four
units, the Census Burcau reported. They increased to an annualized 35,000 permits, up

16.7 percent from a year ago.

-11.7 percent

T'he rate of decline in construction of larger multi-unit residential buildings, such as

apartments and condos, in July.

Permitting agencies across the country issued 377,000 permits on an annualized basis

last month compared with 427,000 units permitted in july 2016.

For many years following the Great Recession, construction of multi-unit residential

buildings outpaced single-family construction. That boom has busted.

“We saw multifamily production peak in 2015, and this sector should continue to level
oft as demand remains solid,” said Robert Dietz, the Home Builders Association’s chief

cconomist.
4,000

The level single-family permit activity in Polk could approach or exceed by the end of

the year, local housing authorities said.

If s0, it would mark the first time Polk exceeded that pernit level since 2006, when

6,761 permits were issued, according to The Ledger survey.

Local entities have issucd 2,496 permits through July.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc.

22

18020037



“I would expect at least 3,900 new home starts this year,” Hickman said. Of those
homes, almost all of them are pre-sold or sold before completion. There is no

inventory of new homes out there.
Ralston agreed.

“Based on July and year-to-date, housing permits in Polk may likely be close to 4,000

for 2017, he said.
Demographics would suggest a reason for optimism, Ralston added.

“Housing starts are a function of people and money,” he said. “According to U.S. Census
data, Polk County is growing by about 10,500 people per year, which is about 3,900
households. So from a pure population perspective, assuming there is no excess supply,

we should have demand for about 4,000 new housing units per year.”
1-4

Polk’s prime location along the Interstate 4 corridor should help maintain demand,

Ralston said.

“Polk is the center of the 1-4 corridor, which means that we will see housing demand
beyond local employment growth,” he said. “Polk will enjoy an increasing spillover
effect from the Orlando and Tampa metropolitan statistical areas. A family can live in
Polk County and work in cither Tampa or Orlando. This helps explain the housing-

starts growth in northeast Polk, which is correlated to Orlando employment growth.”
Still, there’s reason for caution, Hickman said.

“The biggest factor keeping the building industry from meeting the demand is the
shortage of new neighborhoods and building sites, particularly those neighborhoods at

a reasonable price point,” he said.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
23



Discussion

Given the data reported above, as well as discussions with experts in this field, we believe that the
housing market is in a growth phase with increasing demand and increasing supply. The outlook for the
foreseeable future is positive.

Market Values

The S&P/Case-Shiller Home Price Indices began as a research project in the 1980’s when Karl E. Case and
Robert J. Shiller began to construct a methodology to measure housing price movement. They
developed the repeat sales pricing technique, still considered the most accurate way to measure this
asset class. The methodology measures the movement in price of single-family homes in certain regions.
This is done by collecting data on sale prices of specific single-family homes in the region. Each sale price
is considered a data point. When a specific home is resold, months or years later, the new sale price is
matched to the home’s first sale price. These two data points are called a “sale pair.” The difference in
the sale pair is measured and recorded. All the sales pairs in a region are then aggregated into one
index. Sales pairs are carefully screened for any data points that would distort the index. These factors
include foreclosures, non-arm’s length transactions (sales between family members) and suspected data
errors where the order of magnitude of the change is substantially different from other sales pairs in the
region.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
24









Property Description

The subject consists of a 2.96 acre parcel being split out of a larger 24.18 acre parent tract for the
purpose of constructing an amenities area for a proposed residential development. The property is
located along the east side of Holly Hill Road approximately 650 feet south of North Boulevard in
Davenport.

General Site Information

Address HHR East Amenities Land, XXX Holly Hill Road, Davenport, Polk County,
FL, 33837
Current Owner According to the Polk County Property Assessor’s Office, the current

owner of record is HHR East, LLC.

Assessor’s Parcel Number 27-27-05-726000-020151, 27-27-05-726000-020153, 27-27-05-726000-
020140, 27-27-05-726000-020120

Physical Characteristics of the Site

General Location The subject property is located along the east side of Holly Hill Road
approximately 650 feet south of North Boulevard in Davenport.
Frontage/Access The subject property has average access with frontage as follows:

e Holly Hill Road: 255 feet
The parent tract has an average depth of 1,400 feet. It is not a corner
lot.
Site Size Parent Tract: 24.18 acres
Amenities Parcel: 2.96 acres
The site is considered to be al usable.

Shape of Tract The proposed amenities site is irregular, however the parent tract is
roughly rectangular.
Topography The subject has level topography at grade and no areas of wetlands.
Easements There are no known adverse encumbrances or easements. Please
reference Limiting Conditions and Assumptions.
Utilities to Site Water Public water
Sewer Public sewer
Electric The site is served by public electricity.
Natural Gas None
Underground Utilities  The site is serviced by underground utilities.
Adequacy The subject’s utilities are typical and adequate
for the market area.
Curbs and Gutters None
Sidewalks None

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
27



Flood Designation The subject is located in an area mapped by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA). The subject is located in FEMA flood zone
X, which is not classified as a flood hazard area.

FEMA Map Number: 12105C0220G
FEMA Map Date: December 22, 2016

The subject is outside the 500 year flood plain. The appraiser is not an
expert in this matter and is reporting data from FEMA maps.

Wetlands/Watershed No wetlands were observed during our site inspection, which was
verified with published data sources.
Soil Conditions The soil conditions observed at the subject appear to be typical of the

region and adequate to support development.

Economic Factors Affecting the Site

Census Tract 125.04

Zoning/Land Use The property has a Zoning/Land Use designation of PUD, Holly Hill Road
East PUD by City of Davenport.

Overall Site Analysis The subject property is located along the east side of Holly Hill Road

approximately 650 feet south of North Boulevard in Davenport. The
subject consists of a 2.96 acre parcel being split out of a larger 24.18
acre parent tract for the purpose of constructing an amenities area for
a proposed residential development.

The subject is part of a PUD (Planned Unit Development) that includes
the subject parent tract (24.18 acres) as well as an additional 42.86 +/-
acres just to the north along North Boulevard. The current approved
PUD allows for 264, 60-foot lots. The developer has applied for a PUD
modification that will increase the number of lots to 282 which will be
55 feet in width. The first reading is scheduled for April 16, 2018.

As will be discussed later in this report, the highest and best use of this
2.96 acre parcel is to be assembled with the adjacent land for the
purpose of residential development. Based on this reasoning, the
subject parent tract (24.18 acres) will be valued on a per acre basis in
the analysis to follow, then the reconciled price per acre will be applied
to the 2.96 acre subject amenities parcel for a final as is value.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, inc. 18020037
28



























Highest and Best Use

The value of real property is, of course, directly related to the use to which it can be put. It follows
that a particular parcel may have several different value levels under alternative uses. Accordingly,
the property appraised herein is appraised under its Highest and Best Use. According to the
Appraisal Institute, the Highest and Best Use must be (1) physically possible, (2} legally permissible,
(3) financially feasible, and (4) the use producing the highest value maximally productive. Highest
and Best Use may be defined as follows:

The reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved property, which is
physically possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible, and that results in the highest
value.

Highest and best use is shaped by competitive forces within the market where the property is
located ....it is an economic study of market forces focused on the subject property.

Source: The Appraisal of Real Estate, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, Hlinois, 13th edition, 2008
pp.277-287

Because the use of the land can be limited by the presence of improvements, highest and best use is
determined separately for the land or site as though vacant and available to be put to its highest and
best use, and for the property as improved.

The first determination reflects the fact that land value is derived from potential land use. The
highest and best use of a property as improved refers to the optimal use that could be made of the
property including all existing structures.

The determination of the highest and best use of land as though vacant is useful for land or site
valuation; determining the highest and best use of an improved property provides a decision
regarding continued use or demolition of the property.

In the analysis of Highest and Best Use, four major factors are taken into consideration. These are
the Physically Possible, Legally Permissible, Financially Feasible and Maximally Productive uses.

1. Legally Permissible: The category of Legally Permissible uses includes an analysis of public
development regulations, including current and possible future changes in zoning regulations
and procedures, and private constraints including deed restrictions, leases, or any known
encumbrances on title.

2. Physically Passible: The category of Physically Possible is an analysis of the subject's ability to
support various improvement types. Included in this category is an analysis of the physical
attributes of the land, access and transportation, infrastructure and available public services,
environmental considerations, along with current and expected future neighborhood
development trends.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
37



3. Financially Feasible: Financial Feasibility is an analysis of the ability of the property to return the
highest possible yield to the investment of land and improvements based on its income
producing capability and the return requirements of investors in the market.

4. Maximally Productive. The "maximally productive” use is that physically possible and legally
permissible use which creates the highest net return or yield to the subject site.

Highest and Best Use as Vacant

Legal Permissibility

Zoning/Land Use: PUD, Holly Hill Road East PUD (City of Davenport)

Based on the allowable and conditional Single family residential
uses, what are the most probable uses of
the property?

Physical Possibility

Size (Acres / SF) 2.96 /128,938

Shape The proposed amenities site is irregular, however the
parent tract is roughly rectangular.

Access Average

Topography The subject has level topography at grade and no areas
of wetlands.

Are there physical limitations that would No, there are no physical limitations that restrict
restrict construction of the above uses on development on the subject site.
the property?

Financial Feasibility

What is the health of the current market? Healthy

Is there reasonable demand for additional Demand is good at the present time with substantial

product in the marketplace? residential development underway in the immediate
subject vicinity.
Conclusion: Building improvements are considered to be feasible at

the present time.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, inc. 18020037
38



Maximum Productivity

What are the strengths of the subject
property, as vacant?

Located in a strong development corridor with
substantial development currently taking place

What are the weaknesses of the subject
property, as vacant?

Portion of property improved with citrus trees which
will require clearing

Conclusion:

The subject consists of a 2.96 acre parcel being split out
of a larger 24.18 acre parent tract for the purpose of
constructing an amenities area for a proposed
residential development. As previously discussed, the
subject is located in a corridor that is currently
experiencing substantial residential growth with good
demand. Due to the small size of the subject site (2.96
acres), development as a standalone parcel would be
highly improbable. It would likely not be feasible for a
developer to develop a parcel of this size that would
yield such a minimal number of lots. Additionally,
potential use as a single family acreage homesite would
not be feasible based on current per acre pricing in the
area. After considering these factors, the subject 2.96
acre parcel is considered to be best suited to be
assembled with adjacent land for residential
development. Based on the legal and physical
characteristics of the subject property, combined with
the financial feasibility of the property in the
marketplace, and considering the property's strengths
and weaknesses, the maximally productive use of the
subject is assemblage with adjacent land for the
purpose of residential development.

Highest and Best Use as Vacant Conclusion

Assemblage with adjacent land for the purpose of
residential development

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, inc.

18020037
39



Valuation Methodology

Three basic approaches may be used to arrive at an estimate of market value. They are:

1. The Cost Approach
2. The Income Approach
3. The Sales Comparison Approach

Cost Approach

The Cost Approach is based on the principle of substitution, which states that no rational person would
pay more for a property than the amount for which he can obtain, by purchase of a site and
construction of improvements without undue delay, a property of equal desirability and utility. The
basic steps of the Cost Approach are to estimate land value as if vacant, to estimate the replacement or
reproduction cost new of the basic improvements and minor structures (excluding any that were
included as part of the land value), and then to estimate, in dollar amounts, the accrued depreciation
caused by the physical deterioration, functional deficiencies, super adequacies, or any adverse economic
influences. The next step is to deduct the accrued depreciation from the improvement’s estimated
replacement or reproduction cost new to arrive at a present depreciated cost estimate. Then, by adding
the land value estimate, the result is an indicated value for the property by the Cost Approach.

The Cost Approach is summarized as follows:

Cost New

- Depreciation
+ Land Value
= Value

Sales Comparison Approach

The Sales Comparison Approach is based on the proposition that an informed purchaser would pay no
more for a property than the cost of acquiring an equally desirable substitute property with the same or
similar utility. This approach is applicable when an active market provides sufficient quantities of
reliable data, which can be verified from authoritative sources. The Sales Comparison Approach
compares sales of similar properties with the subject property. Each comparable sale is adjusted for its
inferior or superior characteristics. The values derived from the adjusted comparable sales form a range
of value for the subject. By process of correlation and analysis, a final indicated value is derived.

Income Approach

The Income Approach concerns the present value of any future benefits of property ownership. Future
benefits are generally indicated by the amount of net income the property will produce during its
remaining useful life. After comparison of interest yields and characteristics of risk for investments of
similar types and classes of property, this net income is then capitalized into an estimate of value. The
value indicated by the Income Approach is usually the most indicative value for properties, which are
generally held for income production, or investment type properties in general.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
40



Final Reconciliation

The appraisal process concludes with the Final Reconciliation of the values derived from the approaches
applied for a single estimate of market value. Different properties require different means of analysis
and lend themselves to one approach over the others.

Analyses Applied

A cost analysis was considered and was not developed because the subject consists of vacant land and
the cost approach is not applicable.

A sales comparison analysis was considered and was developed because there is adequate data to
develop a value opinion and this approach reflects market behavior for this property type.

An income analysis was considered and was not developed because the subject consists of vacant land
and the cost approach is not applicable.

The subject consists of a 2.96 acre parcel being split out of a larger 24.18 acre parent tract for the
purpose of constructing an amenities area for a proposed residential development. The property is
located along the east side of Holly Hill Road approximately 650 feet south of North Boulevard in
Davenport. In the appraisal of vacant land, the Sales Comparison Approach is most commonly the only
approach applied. The Cost Approach is not applicable and generally income and expense information
for vacant land is not available. Therefore, the appraiser has relied solely on the Sales Comparison
Approach for the valuation of the subject land.

As previously discussed, the highest and best use of the subject 2.96 acre parcel is to be assembled with
the adjacent land for the purpose of residential development. Based on this reasoning, the subject
parent tract (24.18 acres) will be valued on a per acre basis in the analysis to follow, then the reconciled
price per acre will be applied to the 2.96 acre subject amenities parcel for a final as is value.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard CDD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
41
























Comparable Land Sale Adjustments

Expenditures Immediately After Sale

When applicable, sales have been adjusted for Expenditures Immediately After Sale for items of known
costs. These items can include fill, offsite improvements and/or other items which the buyer planned
for, in addition to the sales price. The expenditure has been converted to a price per acre or square foot
in the adjustment grid.

Property Rights
The subject and all sales represent the Fee Simple interest, and no adjustments for property rights were
required.

Financing

All sales sold with cash equivalent terms, and no adjustments for financing were required.

Conditions of Sale

All transactions are considered to be at arm’s length, and no adjustments for conditions of sale were
required.

Economic Trends

In an effort to establish measurable differences in market conditions, if any, we have held discussions
with active market participants such as brokers and investors. This, when coupled with our own
research and experience with historical market indicators such as changes in sale prices, lease rates and
overall capitalization rates, affords us the ability to develop appropriate market conditions adjustments.
Market conditions adjustments were made based on the previous Case Schiller data. Additionally, the
adjustments were based on the dates that the sales were negotiated as longer due diligence periods are
common with properties of this type.

Location

The subject property is located in a an area with significant residential development taking place, east of
US Highway 27 in Davenport. All of the comparable sales are in similar locations within close proximity
to the subject with no adjustments required.

Acres

The subject parent tract contains approximately 24.18 acres. Upward adjustments were made to sales
#1 and #2 as larger parcels typically sell on a lower per acre basis due to the principle of economies of
scale. The remaining comparables are sufficiently similar with no adjustments necessary.

Visibility/Exposure

The subject has average visibility/exposure as is the case in comparables #1, #2 and #4. Comparable #3
has a 50 foot strip of road frontage, however the main portion of the site is situated back from the road
resulting in limited visibility and exposure for which an upward adjustment was made.

Prepared for Holly Hill Road East CDD and North Boulevard COD
Prepared by A.R.E.A. Real Estate Appraisers, Inc. 18020037
49






Addenda



Appraisal Endagement Form

. Cllent Name Holly Hilt Road East COD dnd Novth Boulevard CDD
£ [FN® ,
8 | Clfert Contact Jane Gaarlands | Ordered By | Jane Gaartandt
T | Address 12051 Corporate Blvd '
T City;, State, Zin Orlando, FL 37817 , . :
8 | Phone#® 407-382-3256 |Fax# | 407-382-3254
Emaif Address | laneg@fshkind.com
' g P Paxt Office Box 334
A 4736 First Street South
g Winter Haven, Florida 33882-0333
] {863) 204-2384; (864) 207-5781 fax
2 Oswald P. Carrerou, SRA
« oxvietbarsaresiovtele com
e e, serare me Prulfi vam. ﬂepf,Manager
et ROILAINERS, o i LY
Order Date: 1255008
& Property Address! | XXX Holly Hill Road
§ | City, State, Zip Gode: Davanport, FL 33837
£ Qwner: HHR East, LLC
2 i Propeddy Contact: Jane Gaadandt
= | Contacti®: 407-282-3256
8 | Property Type: Vaeant Land
8 | Land Size (Acres): Ta bw determined
© | Assegsor's Parcel # (if any)h: Held in appraiser’s Hles
Cutrent Status of improvements: N/A
‘ ' Scope of the Anpralsal
Valug Condition: Asls
@ Value Tvga: Market Vaiug
s | Interest Appraised; Feg Simple
5 | Report Format: Appraisal Report
B | Intended User; Holly Hill Road East CDD and Narih Boulgvard GOD
Intonded Use: Bletormine market value for transfor of propariy
# of Coplas Needed: PDF
® | Roports Noeded by (date): |8 wesks from scceplance
£8 | Foer o $1,600
@— Special Instruetions: Appralsal of 2 porion of land {neld in appraisers files) to be
< developed with an amenity center for a propossd development,
Apprasal fo be of the As fs vacant Jand, 1o s highest and best use,

8? srption Mis Aniavont, the SERY Aean 1o o J0ms SHc, Soeiuding tus tno e ol seosnnemis Cosi AeRouined wily e
¥ : N :"ééﬁﬁﬁﬁifaﬁ%ﬁ;{, nf-"ﬁ neRyrstiniss Hal hdsho tos I authuite bo lngaty coaleant fim
ww 25 0 AR A mﬂf Entate Appaisers. 100 Tor i mesigronns,

yisgeans” § L, L
,;..., i v

ignatﬂm

TN st -‘

=
T
i ten

Quwald . Chrrarou, Prefident

R TS AUy
FE e 0 Crdn s B v i SO O A T

Printed Narne Title




ifness: ‘ </ L. Warren McKnight, Jr.,
B- P TN A | Jr. Its President

INSTR # 2017215431

BK 10310 Pgs 0666-0668 PG(s)3
11/09/2017 10:27:21 AM

STACY M. BUTTERFIELD,

This instrument prepared by: CLERK OF COURT POLK COUNTY
Thomas B. Putnam, Jr., Esquire RECORDING FEES 27.00

Peterson & Myers, P.A. :

242 West Central Avenue DEED DOC 4,611.60

Post Office Drawer 7608

Winter Haven, FL 33883-7608

Property Appraiser's Parcel LD,
Numbers: 272705-726000-020151 & 272705-726000-020153

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

The Grantor, HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO., INC.,, a Florida corporation, in
consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other valuable considerations received from the Grantee,
hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee, HHR EAST, LLC, a Florida limited liability company,
whose mailing address is 346 East Central Avenue, Winter Haven, Florida 33880, the real property
located in Polk County, Florida, described as follows ("Property"):

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A FOR LEGAL DESCRlPTION..

SUBJECT TO easements, covenants and restrictions of record, if any, and real
property taxes for the current year. .

The Grantor expressly excludes from this conveyance the pumps, motors and other irvigation
equipment and the citrus fruit crops for the years 2017-2018 located on the Property.

The Grantor covenants that the Property is free of all encumbrances, except as stated above,
and good right to convey the Property is vested in the Grantor. The Grantor hereby warrants the title
to the Property and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever
claiming under or through the Grantor, but not otherwise.

DATED this 31* day of October, 2017.

Signed in the presence of: HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO,,

INC.,;gida corporation
oman 8.7 (). 5 KR Seudidy

-

jnt or Type ¢ of Witness

.U 4 QQM\ Address:
Mess: Post Office Box 708
me g HOUML@I_/M Davenport, FL 33737

Print or Type Name of Witness




STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF POLK

E
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of November, 2017,
by L. Warren McKnight, Jr., as the President of HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO., INC,,

a Florida corporation, on behalf o corporation, who [ Hﬁ)ersona]ly known to me or [ ]
produced a ' as identification.

(SEAL)

apisslon # GG 043145
Explres’November 18, 2020
Boaded Thru Troy Fat Insurance 800-3857019

S LS EY
: 4
" Y 3
§ LI

HAHOMEUSH\HOLLY HILL - CASSIDY - 2017\HOLLY HILL - HHR BAST LLC - OCTOBER 31 20 {\SWD.dac

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK
CFN# 2017215431 OR BK 10310 PG 667 Pgs 0666-0668 11/09/2017 10:27:21 AM




EXHIBIT A

N 1/2 of Tracts 15 and 16 in the SE 1/4 of Section 5, Township 27 South, Range 27 East, FLORIDA
DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT, according to plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 3, Page 60, Public Records of
Polk county, Florida, being in the N 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of said Section 5,
Township 27 South, Range 27 East. LESS AND EXCEPT that property conveyed to Polk County by Quit
Claim Deed recorded in O.R. Book 781, Page 715, Public Records of Polk County, Florida.

AND

S 1/2 of Tracts 15 and 16 in the SE 1/4 of Section 5, Township 27 South, Range 27 East, FLORIDA
DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT, according to plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 3, Page 60, Public Records of
Polk county, Florida, being in the S 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of said Section 5,
Township 27 South, Range 27 East. LESS AND EXCEPT that property conveyed to Polk County by Quit
Claim Deed recorded in O.R. Book 781, Page 713, Public Records of Polk County, Florida.

HAHOMEVSH\HOLLY HILL - CASSIDY - 2037\HOLLY HILL - HHR EAST LLC - OCTOBER 31 2017\LEGAL DESCRIPTION - EXHIBIT A.docx

Stacy M. Butterfield POLK
CFN# 2017215431 OR BK 10310 PG 668 Pgs 0666-0668 11/09/2017 10:27:21 AM




INSTR # =Z017087633
B ko o
.. :01:08 P
This instrument prepared by: STRCY M. BUTTERFIELD O1:358 PH

Thomas B. Putnam, Jr., Esquire CLERK OF COURT POLK &OUNTY
rorunis e A B

242 West Central Avenue ' '

Post Office Drawer 7608 RECORDED BY megagoin

Winter Haven, FL 33883-7608

Property Appraiser's Parcel 1.D.
Number: 272705-726000-020140

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

The Grantor, HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO., INC., a Florida corporation, in
consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other valuable considerations received from the Grantee,
hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee, HHR EAST, LLC, a Florida limited liability company,
whose mailing address is 346 East Central Avenue, Winter Haven, Florida 33880, the real property
located in Polk County, Florida, described as follows ("Property"):

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

SUBJECT TO easements, covenants and restrictions of record, if any, and real
property taxes for the current year.

The Grantor expressly excludes from this conveyance the pumps, motors and other irrigation
equipment and the citrus fruit crops for the years 2017-2018 located on the Property.

The Grantor covenants that the Property is free of all encumbrances, except as stated above,
and good right to convey the Property is vested in the Grantor. The Grantor hereby warrants the title
to the Property and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever
claiming under or through the Grantor, but not otherwise.

st
DATED this | = day of May, 2017.

Signed in the presence of: HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO.,
INC.,, a Flgrida corporation

Topan B b X 500 OGib

Witpess: L. Warren McKn\iEh‘f, Jr., \J
MNAS 8 Pu'l/t\lpnh— , J~ Its President
int or Type N of Witness
$$:, . o Post Office Box 708
J Davenport, FL 33737

Print or Type Name of Witness

Book10140/Page1653 CFN#2017087633 Page 1 of 3



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF POLK

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this May of May, 2017, by L.
Warren McKnight, Jr., as the President of HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO,, INC,, a

Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation, who [§4§personally known to me or [ } produced
a """ as identification.

%@mm

(SEAL) ARY PUBLIc—’

Print or Type Jaiiei HOVERKAMP
P * 1 Commisslon# GG 013145

My Commissipr 5##

Book10140/Page1654 CFN#2017087633 Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description

Tract 14 in the SE 1/4 of Section 5, Township 27 South, Range 27 East, of MAP OF FLORIDA
DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT LOCATED IN POLK COUNTY FLORIDA, according to the map or plat
thereof as recorded in Plat Book 3, Page 60, Public Records of Polk County, Florida.

Book10140/Page1655 CFN#2017087633 Page 3 of 3



INSTR # 2017087639
BK 10140 Pgs 1666-1668 PG(s)3
RECDRDED 00/08/2017 01:05:07 PM

This instrument prepared by: STACY M. BUTTERFIELD
Thomas B. Putnam, Jr., Esquire glE.EgKDgE 22U(}§I4P%K bounTy
Peterson & Myers, P.A. .

199 Avenue B, N.W., Suite 200 EEESEB%B‘GB$EE§Q§§Z;2°

Post Office Drawer 7608

Winter Haven, FL 33883-7608

Property Appraiser's Parcel 1D,
Number: 272705-726000-020120

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

The Grantor, HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO., INC., a Florida corporation, in
consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other valuable considerations received from the Grantee,
hereby grants and conveys to the Grantee, HHR EAST, LLC, a Florida limited liability company,
whose mailing address is 346 East Central Avenue, Winter Haven, Florida 33880, the real property
located in Polk County, Florida, described as follows ("Property"):

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT A FOR LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

SUBJECT TO easements, covenants and restrictions of record, if any, and real
property taxes for the current year.

The Grantor expressly excludes from this conveyance the pumps, motors and other irrigation
equipment and the citrus fruit crops for the years 2017-2018 located on the Property.

The Grantor covenants that the Property is free of all encumbrances, except as stated above,
and good right to convey the Property is vested in the Grantor. The Grantor hereby warrants the title
to the Property and will defend the same against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever
claiming under or through the Grantor, but not otherwise.

3T
DATED this_{ ~ day of May, 2017.

Signed in the presence of: HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO.,
INC., a F}evida corporation
2 [}
gnae BB, o, S bk Pgaslxy
Witness: J__(/ L. Warren McKnight, Jr.,” '
’ﬁ'ft:/fms 8 . IDUTI:/A"W\, r, Its President
int-or Type Name of Witness

ML Address:
: ‘ Post Office Box 708
J?Wue £. /JO\Ieﬂfélll@ Davenport, FL. 33737

Print or Type Name of Witness

Book10140/Page1666 CFN#2017087639 Page 1 of 3



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF POLK

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thisg ——d’ ay of May, 2017, by L.
Warren McKnight, Jr., as the President of HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO,, INC,, a
Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation, who HI/S personally known to me or [ ] produced

a _ as identification.
(SEAL) gTARY PUBLIC”

Print or Type fég"*‘?ﬁ% M $GG013148
%E}?-@; Explmmﬂglmbﬂfﬂ.m
. Bonded Thrx Troy Fala tnsurance B00-385-7010

QQn BN

My Commiss]

Book10140/Page1667 CFN#2017087639 Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description

Tracts 12 and 13 in the SE 1/4 of Section 5, Township 27 South, Range 27 East, of MAP OF FLORIDA
DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT LOCATED IN POLK COUNTY FLORIDA, according to the map or plat
thereof as recorded in Plat Book 3, Page 60, Public Records of Polk County, Florida.

Book10140/Page1668 CFN#2017087639 Page 3 of 3



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST C.D.D.
AMENITIES CENTER

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF TRACTS 15 AND 16 IN THE SOUTHEAST % OF SECTION 05, TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH, RANGE
27 EAST, POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, OF “FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT COMPANY”, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 03, PAGES 60 THROUGH 63, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY,
FLORIDA, BEING DESCRIBED AS:

COMMENCE AT A 5/8"” IRON ROD AND CAP “LB 8135” STANDING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH
LINE OF SAID TRACT 16 AND THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF HOLLY HILL ROAD ACCORDING TO THAT
CERTAIN QUIT CLAIM DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 781, PAGE 713 PUBLIC RECORDS OF
POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN THENCE ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY $-00°29'37"-E, 115.01
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY 5-89°38'09"-E,
484.24 FEET; THENCE $-00°21'51"-W, 50.00 FEET; THENCE $-89°38'09”-E, 0.57 FEET; THENCE S-
00°21°51”-W, 110.00 FEET; THENCE $-89°39'09"-£, 60,00 FEET; THENCE 5-00°21'51"-W, 95.00 FEET;
THENCE N-89°38'09-W, 540.99 FEET TO A POINT ON 5AID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF HOLLY HILL ROAD;
THENCE ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY N-00°29'37"-W, 255.03 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

CONTAINING 2.96 ACRES, MORE OR LESS,

OFFICE: (863) 940~2040
35y FAX ( (gss) 9402044 EXHIBIT A-1
SRR CAL: (B63) 662-0018
Engineering 1925 BarTow ROAD LEGAL DESCRIPTION
-~ tie  LAKELAND, FL 33801 {NOT A SURVEY)
DENNIS WOOD, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER EXHIBIT A CONSISTS OF TWO {2) PAGES,
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com AND IS NOT COMPLETE WITHOUT BOTH PAGES

l__] PAGE 1 OF 2|




Engineering 1925 BARTOW ROAO
= Lo LAKELAND, FL 33801

DENNIS WOOD, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com

=

R MO
: I N
SOUTHEAST! 1/4 OF SECTION 05, 0 25 O 50 ! 100
TOWNSHIP 27 $50UTH, RANGE 27 EAST - -
e SE TRACT 1 E TRACT 2 Scale: 17 =100’
1 NORTH LINE TRACT 16 | -
W POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
l ~ - FLORIDA DEVELOPMEl\]T CO. TRACT
| | Q2 PpoIT OF BEGINNING PLAT BOOK 3, PAGES 60-63 .
L)
‘ gog” TRACT 16 | TRACT 15 &
| @ | 018
N S 89°38'09" E 484.24' NR
[ ; 0
g ~ pase Ty e e g
LQ( EE e, — : - N J S 89°38'09" E_0.57'
PO 53T l l ] l ! ] l l l Y ‘//-—————-———-‘—"'
:O 8 ‘r’\]‘ ':.;l// . ‘:‘:\:‘J._LJ_J ™ '—[-_,l';,l,* F -“‘LJTL D :lv:,f“;{)_b:_j
N P . A .
!j & § E ¥ | COVERED ng
=1 P e WAy PAVILIGH =S
I 5 Bl —| ok [ | H =
Gedls £ R N 2
'z glo Lk ) S 89°38'09" E
OrzIX —: [== 60.00"
e I 1 g =
T 513 A 1 PLAYGROLND : <
| 38z i 5 75
g g At l il El' 3. b
| g2 | 8 &
I 8 ‘g o il ! n ’_'
I I% N 89°38'09" W 540.,99' !
5
| FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CO. TRACT
l = PLAT BOOK 3, PAiGES 60-63
5 l
l TRACT 16 ‘ TRACT 15
i SOUTHEAST 1/4 OlF SECTION 05,
| TOWNSHIP 27 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST
‘ l
I |
| |
s |
i | B
OFFICE: (863) 940-2040
Dennls FAX: ( (8)63) 94%)_20“ E X H I B IT A"'2
. Wood el @y SKETCH TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL

DESCRIPTION
(NOT A SURVEY)
EXHIBIT A CONSISTS OF TWO (2) PAGES,
AND IS NOT COMPLETE WITHOUT BOTH PAGES

PAGE 2 OF 2|




Engleermg

LLC

November 15, 2017

April Brown

City of Davenport

1 South Allapaha Avenue
Davenport, FL 33837

Re: Holly Hill Road East PUD
Dear Apri,
Please find enclosed the following for your review:

e Application for a Planned Unit Development

¢ A checkin the amount of $3155.20 for the PUD Review Fee
s [mpact Statemen with Exhibits

e Legal Description

e Letter of Authorizations

o One (1) Signed and Sealed Overall Master Plan

e One{1) CD with PDF of all documents.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please call,

Sincerely,
o /w;rﬁ/

Dennis L, Wood, P.E,

1925 Bartow Road * Lakeland, Florida 33801 « Phone: (863) 940-2040 * Fax: (863) 8402044



























































































































































































H
83
B
T 1HS 2
2
— S— z
HIICTIDAE JO MBATY ALLD SO TTRL LY OICHAGR =
NYd o e S e S T p—— 2
yIISYW s 5o e AT AL TR0 T SO T PR oo g
T TR ONYREOYR L) LAV ¥ 4 NO O4ON o BB, 4140 950 L. 5
TIVH3, - OS2 Ovie 313 HO3 SILON NV 1d LNSAJOTATa RN Tndess ere s TovRey 38 Tn Tan v 3
»
AVIIVON ST ALK 4104 ALY vauy oY
B\ o e oy - g
@ ) SITNGA SONTIEAT AN STEIY ML CHEN 10 AL AL oz _ L a
s rnscng S S 1 sz crt o oz e 3
=8 Al ¥id INSWJO TIAS red 10 et BN AN MDAV 3 AL12 50 €20 AGOE = e 3
B EH KA ¥ Y 1 ] 3 &Y
2 . o G2z
AT 3 ¥, AV U0 B{NTIOVD (LI RIS WD T THA KAL3AD Hav2g EINOLCZ 40 LTI HNHINYT e i d e ] w
f ELbS oy I IO PR AT TTONS 5 MBS W ) AR O 3 4 P
m N B TP LRI B A U SO S o sero1.0 2 oo Ik pgL| z
S e 2
EES Lo 2240 s L Dr I 0% : g
20100 50 H
.. u 0 0403 Va0t DA 0 TR FMANTS AL TRV O TR T DAV “rpnannaag o £
d~ F o Sihceagva Gat0.fes v LS00 Tl i G Caioc T G TR L3 ) UV VY O z £
- T R e bt T o Sl i = g
o ) vy el 2 =
z S3ILOLN %03 STLON Nvid INSWIOITATT H < 3
e (VO THH ATI0- Qv NS PIVIONS OOM 3 = 2
o e DOLZOTHOL AT HICH VA MOUVIIOR AVl O NOLRTY % = ]
H o VALY + ¥ -20-LHDRN QG O) GTHTY 50760 LITCAN YIWY ST - Es
2 v T AT ONY T WO Y D 3600 DI i3 2
3 23 Ay UL O S 1o LINONA YIY G340 g £
e e
s iy £OO SOVIND HOZ YDA LIk 4O KOALTION) JO WL G 3 5
2
46 05T1 YaHY OO QINCLLIGNOD Ny APt TIONR VN TUONYLANGD IR DL ARSROYY BLEDION. “TFEINO Bf U NIHA NDLLSIDORTY 2
€I 1 &
VAUV ONATT ROININTN SILON SOUVONVLS Nv1d 3US SHTCAOIAOH SHL AT TINYIHIVY (rY QIUMD 59 Q4. i @
- O T YR O TN 2 G EAs H
— L g HEND! a4 BV LSTUTS THRI04 61 1) NIWR HOSL VIRV @
- 5 j 4 TN ATIOH ‘0T HLHON) LHET ) SO L KD CIGYLN OV e TDOL 13
Sn s “os350Y ovrous AL Yy PRI G HI440 TN B E
X 3 T sz . 20 15102000092250LLLT o SIS L roumoseY 2
el (B0VHYO} LNOMA OELOTO000OLLEOLELE DU BUAD QBTN B0 OO
20 O = ety (35n0H) ANON1 OPtaEaa00pzes0s 2t 2004 ST N0 BiY AL 430 D R &
oxmr SHOvEis €5102000092450L 842
= < - OPEDIBO0SSZLE0LTLT FEVI3OVSN 1OVHL
Z 0 L34 08 HLS30 107 WAIRIN USZOTOODSELLLOLELL
3B m FET ] HLOWA 10T WAKINIA CPIOLOOUSSELSOLELY
- < — M 45080 SIS 101 NARININ uNNGMWMeMMMNNM“MMMM
m BNOIBNINIT 107 QBTOTO0OSELL
-4 o DETOTDAOSSTLEOLLLE
o M - P> o SL01VIOL OEZOTOBOSFELE0LELT
3 =0 owraLoT 1y {9040/ T8T) ALSNIT TTLOLOD0GETLE0LLLL
== VoCe HAADUD NOLLYINDAY 012Z01000$52L50LTLT
©o-m m MWL 45 X00TAT GABNDIY NOILYINOTY o
> =z ovary TROYEE NBO ONY NOLLNILTY 5730dvd
> ovary {p048 X 1°0) TIVeS NIH0 OIMINOIY
=i avozse WY ONYT L3N
l DYt NCIUYIIQRA AYM-OLHDIE
ks IUY QMY Y01 LNOINIAYC 40 AL ¥ZUY 3JNMGS ALTUD  »
HIEVL 330 0NV UHOJNIAVA 40 ALS) WY 3 WY S350 ONYY
mm i~ *NOLLVWHOSNI 3115
3
:3 'Ez
H
gz MM .
2% 3 .ﬂ o1t ey e v DRNB R TG
8¢ 3,59
22 8 4
-
288
43
HH
B> e HER
s &8 g
2 Se _ %
5 85 EgE
-2
3 =23 Ep g
83 E¢3
g =t =

035200495 e
v T a4 ENRGSY L eGP WSO PEAGTL 3 V0

ol ava

LW 14 LV £ Torews WATOS T IO YO ROHLOI 0§ LEVINLN IHLN M1 15wil
&

AvOu WVHONTH

U AR 1004 £ 1M1 00 13- A T 020 By
et i L O LS AT e

SNOZINOH

N G 100 DU T 4 o S Kk T

.
Rl WOmAIde

o)

o e s s 2008

m Siima A > b

. e v

2 4

2 4 £
H

74

o YMON

05t




Eo3 HeLB BEUaRUEUAPRAVSINIAP THYHT T
EINIH ROGSEL 000 5930 YaOTd "ALNNOD X10d e ~
1DREE T4 QXY I o Zm
Ov0d Moteva szet  BupeaufBu JYOdNIAYT 40 ALD " 3= § =
INIWAOTIAIA AINNVId | Hoco3wH, g2z | T
ANGLY] 101 G T TR05 oy T = v
TITONG uZd FELED] i i R) Wi
S T e e 1Sv3 dvOy TilH ATI0H
H
58
09 =.T Yo #x
7 ]
= avod WVHONIN
NOLLYDIO3Q AVAA-40-1HD1 WHOLLIGQY. > . /
T I S P 7 T R A S P L LA R T Y PPV IIEII pd %
s B R T B e wE B T A T e e ¥
N A 5 A . o 5 s
B 2 5 i L g o o & 2z j
~ 18 A g 4 2 B3 3 7 = H 2 A 4 s
fOE R B9 ER EQ Bg o En fgog® B3 prn Bw Fa PFo3
4 ~ g
; /
g o | s | met | eses | soss exss o sos | sees 38 g | sree | o s ’
.~ —_ e — = — -
- ¢
¢ S T )
s i ]
PRSI m s . @ | o s &l 2 = ElY
ﬁg s 3 s R s R ER & R ER R a g o = S
g g = g ~ jg e =2 g - g =~ g~ el ) N it
5 81 = 2 2 2 2 2 B Z 2 2 %
-4 AT N
g %
2 S ovet o
: n S MR
| 5 0 m PN ] o @ 5 @ g o~ © g @ = - 3 EI T
g iR N R BT O L O T - I R B P g ¢
H ] 2 2 H B = H g 2 g E HEE
3 ° ENEI
eSS 085 2155 st 2538 298¢ Pty oyss sy 2SS 5358 205§ %S & EE B S 8
§ / en g =
- i B R S SRR : G )
¢ ST : - S L o g
', NG = ~ o 12
£ e G0 R = 33 o 2
g - =T
/ H «a « e o 18
“ 4o L ko a L a g . g 15
. . Y 5 o g E B 234 4 0 & Bk rest B
5 3 E 5 ETR o
’ =
; ; o S = 5ol
s s % 29 5 oo 4 e sss e - n By
T SR 1
; P L i — Fyy avet /
& m g 41 2 A N %
. 3 = e Z 5 i s - =l 2 ~ & . o 1
./ gé = o = 2 e ik 3 . a1
y FET h T e £natn ] 4
p : P .
£ 2
- S 2 ¥ g ~ i &
S 3 o L, e & B N
¥ B = 2 8 5 S E 2 - g
Bl =15 i Poon sy b ot N
wny “
Q < B £ @ by .
) X 5 : o L o g & 4 & |
2 & =3 - # o~ & )
‘::' e B T T S i T i E= wort Eaaty | =
g E t san 2]
% - L oz T s g
i - 3 a 2 H = A - 4 Vg
@ B Er E o B o e ga@d B 8 QA B A E 0D of " caout osout 3 %5
o) ks % % s g 2T B~ BT K T BT R TR B A8
| g o % 3 Bl A B
[ e B g G = b £
e =] 2 Sk . ‘g
3 = E coss | evss | sess | ages | swss mus_|_tess s i) g 2 1z
se
o
% ASNEREE - — = . e tﬁ 3 g | |l g LR z s
BN - i i ? 3 .
A B - ¥ — R ——— e OLL < ot E -
7 : ) 5 T i3 5 B e S EiG 3 E ,
s 7 i " | %
- a Sl 2 E @ g
1l N 5 - 3 2 e 2 S HE
1 F A P R 2R E® B8 BB EBES EB I EE 4 e L —
st & = = =4 =4 = F = = -~ % N i ]
{ 5 e .: & 5 3 B -
8 3 ‘ i = B # - /]
AB jul B 253 oS ZA%% o35, s 05s 208 £0sS e 95y s 4301 { 4
s B El g
O e )
R . o i o g o
b3 o & s - L3 wi o b &;
o - B 2 0 B g Bw oEPL B o R 2 B8 & =3 3B H sgu 2 a 3 ¥
= s - B = B Ewm 2 = E m = B2 B 2 @2 5 <
& B 3 g £ £ E = = 3 = 2 & = E y by
b 2 7 EXEE) -
e | 1 ] S B ] 4 Al E
% 5.5 J = pt Al =
S Bl8 sen /, N B er6s o5 v s | gow s orett 3 ° K . o =3
@ 5|ef 7. — = 2 = 3 4 d=
gg_;._'_._ = - = e o e e S — sy |3
Gy o
5 T
= s TR o T T e i R RO RN E5S - N - . & o
3 & o E S & 5 g |z
El # £ I S B
g cust e 8
ks 2 52 2 Er 3 o B Eo B o BR B;m B3 B S OE o B o JIg
A B 2 F ¥ 8 v B < pwn g0 g = £ g Fow 2 Yo 2 o H @ il a0e
& E ] s H g E 3
% E : 2 B .z
% $ szt £zt it
wn oss | w1 eoss | st | ome | osess | asss | wows | e | awsi | g | oow L - $SE &
sreEr g g o = dBiE] &
g @ 3 - L a A5E g
& < 5 @ & ~ = S E o aOL gl B
g g 2 in E reae o2t 5| a2
. s o ERE
[k = o © 2 14 L %
Wi Iy Z . ~ & b4 M r
s 5 Z i ¢ 2 A <o 1§
ik 2 E . N ; 18
4,! £ gy g @ 2 w3 s
! I W O o A 5 5 2 Y
20 sro g ~ 3 0 B q
b n ¥ ~ 2 R s ]
E I 5 ™ R /]
. 4F z ¢
¥ i 5% o Q H 1 £
- ) L3 ~ kS ~1 %3
o3 U I = z oue
<[ g QS 2 og 7] &%
- ! oy 3 2 F85% % 4
Iy % Zi g x g5 s
< 1 a~ee
o | g 8 %
& g 7
g dds B 2 £g Y
EEC B S U 2k g
~Nod B 58
) 3] (S8 s X / ' -
3 ;
g b= = 3 55 o /e PR PR PR PR PR :
¥ > L EE B
o g fr——f— < S gg F g
B 3 SR S g
| <
g 63
<
18 5
Wl
’}g B
5
5]

9EsT:
"GERPL WY 10572 BIGHISLE BVA T 0d 0O Y83 FRAY KHWG 0AG0) 1SVE 08 TN ATIOHSAAL Euikeiay”






















Holly Hill Road East
Community Development District

Payment Authorization Nos. 23 - 25



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Payment Authorization No. 023

3/16/2018
ltem Invoice General
No. Number Fund
1 Duke Energy
Acct: 66949 31127 ; Deposit - $ 240.00
2 Business Observer

Legal Ad On 03/09/2018

18-00403K  § 46.75

Please Return To:

Holly Hill Road East CDD
c/o Fishkind & Associates
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, FL 32817

TOTAL $ 286.75

Saunen Dehuwenk

Board Member

RECEIVED MAR 19 201




DUKE
ENERGY.

STATEMENT OF SERVICE
MARCH 2018

66949 31127

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST CDD DUE DATE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: ATTN: JOE MCCLAREN MAR 27 2018 240.00
1-877-372-8477 12051 CORPORATE BLVD
ORLANDO FL 32817 NEXT READ DEPOSIT AMOUNT
WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com . DATE ON OR ON ACCOUNT
...... SERVICE ADDRESS ABOUT
TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: 950 DAVENPORT BLVD, LIFT NONE
1.800-228-8485 DAVENPORT FL 33837
DEPOSIT 240.00
PIN: 568174431
METER READINGS TOTAL CURRENT BILL 260.00
TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT $240.00

avoid a 1% late charge being applied to this account.

Kit. Visit us at http://duke-energy.com/FreeBizCheck, or call
1-877-372-8477.

ENERGY USE

Payment of this statement within 80 days from the billing date will

Learn how to lower your bill with a free on-site Business Energy

Check. This no-cost analysis provides you with specific tips on how

to save energy and qualify for valuable rebates for energy-savings
measures. You may also qualify for a-. FREE Commercial Energy Savings

BF_BL_DEF_20180305_212341_1.CSV-14663-000022842

DETACH AND RETURN THIS SECTION ZP05 0000522
Make checks payable to: Duke Energy

ACCOUNT NUMBER - 66949 31127

014663 000022842 2&58&1%04

ik -100:
e LT T e T L T L S 1004
HOLLY HiLL ROAD EAST CDD
ATTN: JOE MCCLAREN
12051 CORPORATE BLVD
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450

MAR 27 2018

TOTAL DUE

240.00

PLEASE ENTER
AMOUNT PAID

LL949311272000000240002000000000006000000024000201000000000019




Business Observer

1970 Main Street
3rd Floor
Sarasota, FL. 34236
INVOICE .
L 941-906-9386 x322
Legal Advertising
Invoice # 18-00403K Date 03/09/2018
Attn: Jane Gaarlandt Please make checks payable to:
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. (Please note Invoice # on check)
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. Business Observer
ORLANDO FL 32817 1970 Main Street
3rd Floor
Sarasota, FL 34236
Description Amount
Serial # 18-00403K . " $46.75 |

Notice of Board of Supervisors' Meeting
RE: Holly Hill Road East Community Development District
Published: 3/9/2018

Impt;i;tantMességé S ;
Total $46.75

ECEIVED MAR 12 2018

Attention: If you are a government agency and you belleve that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second insertion of
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323.

NOTICE
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and
that its information is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct
them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors.




Business Observer

1970 Main Street
3rd Floor
Sarasota, FL. 34236
INVOICE

. 941-906-9386 X322
Legal Advertising

Holly Hill Road East
Community Developnient District
Notice of
Board of Supervisors’ Meeting
The Board of Supervisors of the Holly
Hill Road East Community Develop-
ment District (“Board”) will hold a
meeting on Wednesday, March 21,2018
at 10:46 a.m. at the Offices of Cassidy
Homes, 346 East Central Ave,, Winter
Haven, Florida 33880. The meeting
is open to the public and will be con-
ducted in accordance with provision of
Tlorida Law related to Special Distiiets.
The meeting may be continued to a
date, time, and place to be specified on
the record at the meeting. A copy of the
agendamay be obtained at the offices of
the District Manager, 12051 Corporate
Blvd., Orlando, Florida 32817, during

normal business hours,

There may be occasions when staff
or other individuals mnay participate by
speaker telephone,

Any person requiring special accom-
modations at these meetings because
of a disability or physical impairment
should contact the District Office at
(407) 382-3256 at least forty-eight
(48) Lours prior to the meeting. If you
are hearing or speech impaived, please
contact the Florida Relay Service at
1-800-955-8770, for aid in contacting
the District Office.

Each person who decides to appeal
any decision made by the Board with
respect to any matter considered at
the meeting is advised that person will
need a record of the proceedings and
that accordingly, the person may need
to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, including the tes-
timony and evidence upon which such
appeal is to be based,

District Manager
March 9, 2018 18-00403K

Attention: if you are a government agency and you believe that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second insertion of
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323.

NOTICE
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and
that its information is correct, Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct
them as soon s possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors.




HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Payment Authorization No. 024
3/23/2018
Itém Vendor Invoice General
No. Number Fund
1 Fishkind & Associates
DM Fee & Reimbursables: March 2018 22322 $ 1,897.11

Please Return To:

Holly Hill Road East CDD
¢/o Fishkind & Associates
12051 Corporate Boulevard
Orlando, FL 32817

TOTAL $ 1,897.11

Y

N\ Board Member

RECEIVED MAR 76 2018



Fishkind & Associates, Inc.
12051 Corporate Blvd.
Orlando, FL 32817

Holly Hill Road East CDD

c/o Fishkind & Associates, Inc.
12051 Corporate Blvd
Orlando, FL 32817

File: HollyHillRoadEastCDD

RECEIVED

MAR 1 6 2018

FISHKIND

Invoice

Invoice #: (22322

3/13/2018

Holly Hill Road East

Services: Amount

District Management Fee: March 2018 1,666.67
Website Fee 125.00
UPS 3.33
Copies 93.60
Postage 8.51

incl the invoi
Please include the invoice Balance Due $1.89711

number on your remittance
and submit to:
Fishkind & Associates, Inc.
12051 Corporate Blvd.
Orlando, FL 32817
Ph: 407-382-3256
Fax: 407-382-3254
www.fishkind.com




5 iyl 1e10] gng unoo | 4 sumoy “Ajjoy upp
866 el 2301 ‘ . 8UMc | “AlloH IAH BoUsIseY [iig
CL-S30IAHIS XOE¥00T ANYT YONYIAY
80168 NI Jeddiyg Isfey
INVd INIvs 41828 74 900 . suogz
JAMA XMHYd ADHINT 00z) OANVTHO L wbem
o SILONA-d3 QA8 3LvHOJHOD H502Z)  punolp [elosswnion  jeasq a0lneg
190 9.0 sbreyoing feny JAO-¥NINVE SN s31vinossy 3 ANDIHSIS B102/20/20  s3eQ dmyjory
A LULL WBel ) . d8A1308Y Jeddiyg €2559.Y6E088HBALZ] 10N Sdn
20 rer T edi




Copy Count

account: 1011y HiL

: |
Amount of Copies: @@ -

Total S: 93,40

Month:February




pitneybowes éa_‘;

Account Summary Report
Date Range: Feb 1, 2018 to Feb 28th, 2018
Meter Group: All Meters
Meter 1W0D - 1376538 OLD at ORLANDO, FL
Meter 4WOD - 0347354 at ORLANDO, FL
Meter Details

SR Civlecatlon b T R ‘' Meter Name - | 'Setial Number | PhP Account Number
{ORLANDO, FL 4W00 - 0347354 {0347354 24978470

|ORLANDO, FL 1W00 - 1376538 OLD 1376538 124978470

Account Summary

o Account

“Sub'Account- 1}

Holly Hill Road East CDD ] g

Grand Total,




HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Payment Authorization No. 025

4/6/2018
Item " Vendor Invoice General
No. - Number Fund
1- Hopping Green & Sams’ o
General Counsel Through 02/28/2018 009376 $ 1,820.42
2 Supervisor Fees - 03/21/2018 Meeting
Rennie Heath - $ 200.00
Scott Shapiro . ' -- $ 200.00
Lauren Schwenk - $ 200.00
John Mazuchowski - $ 200.00
Andrew Rhinehart - $ 200.00

TOTAL $ 2,820.42

Board Member

Please Return To:

Holly Hill Road East CDD _

c/o Fishkind & Associates CPEIVED APR 7 N3
12051 Corporate Boulevard ‘%L[;L‘Vn‘[] AK H [] ¢ Z[]!B
Orlando, FL 32817




Hopping Green & Sams

Attorneys and Counselors

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 AR g1 N ’

P.0. Box 6526 RECEIVED APR 02 s

Tallahassee, FL 32314 o LU
850.222.7500

March 28, 2018
Holly Hill Road East CDD Bill Number 99376
¢/o Fishkind & Associates Billed through 02/28/2018
12051 Corporate Bivd.
Orlando, FL 32817

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting

HHECDD 00001 RVW

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED

02/15/18  SSW Attend development status conference call. 0.30 hrs
02/19/18  SSW Prepare form of engineering services agreement; confer with Gaarlandt 1.30 hrs

regarding proposals for first work authorization; confer with engineer regarding
necessary revisions to proposals.

02/21/18 RVW Attend board meeting. 3.80 hrs
02/21/18  SSW Conduct meeting follow-up. 0.20 hrs
02/22/18  AH) Attend development status conference call. 0.10 hrs
Total fees for this matter $1,631.50
DISBURSEMENTS
Document Reproduction 35.75
Travel 145.42
Travel - Meals 7.75
Total disbursements for this matter $188.92
MATTER SUMMARY
Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 0.10 hrs 125 /hr $12.50
Van Wyk, Roy 3.80 hrs 310 /hr $1,178.00
Warren, Sarah S. 1.80 hrs 245 /hr $441.00
TOTAL FEES $1,631.50
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $188.92
TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER $1,820.42
BILLING SUMMARY

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 0.10 hrs 125 /hr $12.50



General Counsel/Monthly Meetin Bill No. 99376

Van Wyk, Roy
Warren, Sarah S.

TOTAL FEES
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL

3.80 hrs 310 /hr $1,178.00
1.80 hrs 245 /hr $441.00
$1,631.50

$188.92

$1,820.42

Please include the bill humber on vour check.



Holly Hill Road East Community Development District

Date of Meeting: March 21, 2018

Board Members: Attendance Fee
1. Rennie Heath X $200
2. Scott Shapiro - X {p) $200
3. Lauren Schwenk X $200
4. John Mazuchowski X $200
6. Andrew Rhinehart X $200

$1,000

Approved For Payment:

z N
W/ s /N

Date ’







Holly Hill Road East
Community Development District

Monthly Financials

(provided under separate cover)



